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This matter was opened to the New Jersey State Board of Chiropractic Examiners upon

receipt of information which the Board has reviewed and on which the following findings of fact and

conclusions of law are made.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Respondent is a chiropractor in the State of New Jersey and has been a licensee at all

times relevant hereto.

2. On December 18, 2003, Respondent was convicted in the Federal District Court for the

Eastern District of Pennsylvania of the following crimes: Conspiracy to Commit Healthcare Fraud,

in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371, in that from 1997 through 2002, in furtherance of a conspiracy, he

recorded in the chiropractic practice's records treatment that had not been provided to claimants

who had purportedly injured themselves in slip-and-fall and other accidents, knowing that the

treatment had not been provided and knowing that the bills for purported treatment would be

submitted to insurance companies in support of claims filed by attorneys to recover monies for the

purported injuries to the claimants; and Obstruction of a Criminal Investigation of Healthcare

Offenses, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1518, in that he willfully prevented, obstructed, misled, and

delayed the communication of information relating to a violation of a federal healthcare offense to



a criminal investigator by shredding and causing to be altered, documents that had been

subpoenaed by the grand jury to make it appear that claimants for whom the practice had billed

for chiropractic and physiotherapy treatments had actually received that treatment on the dates

indicated by the alterations, despite Respondent knowing that the claimants had not appeared at

the practice on those dates.

3. On June 28, 2005, Respondent was sentenced to serve 12 months and one day

imprisonment, followed by three years of supervised release; fined $5,000.00; and ordered to pay

an assessment of $200.00, and to make restitution of $68,107.44 to various insurance companies.

4. On June 23, 2006, Respondent was the subject of a Final Order entered by the

licensing authority in the State of Pennsylvania based upon the aforesaid conviction and effective

July 24, 2006. Specifically, the Pennsylvania State Board of Chiropractic Examiners levied a civil

penalty of $3,000.00 upon Respondent and suspended his license to practice chiropractic for five

years, with a one year period of ineligibility for requesting reinstatement to probationary status.

Reinstatement to probationary status would require Respondent to pay the civil penalty in full, to

be in full compliance with the terms of his criminal sentencing order and supervised release, to not

be the subject of any other formal disciplinary action pending before the Pennsylvania Board, and

to submit verification that he has not practiced in violation of the Pennsylvania Board's order.

(Copy of the Final Order of the Pennsylvania State Board of Chiropractic Examiners annexed

hereto and made a part hereof).

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The above conviction provides grounds for the suspension of Respondent's license to

practice chiropractic in New Jersey pursuant toN.J.S.A 45:1-21(f), in that the crime of which

Respondent was convicted is one of moral turpitude and/or relates adversely to the practice of

chiropractic.
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2. The aforesaid Final Order entered by the licensing authority in the State of Pennsylvania

provides grounds for the suspension of Respondent's license to practice chiropractic in New Jersey

pursuant to N.J.S.A 45:1-21(g), in that he was suspended by a sister state based on findings or

admissions that would give rise to discipline in this State.

Based on the foregoing findings and conclusions, a Provisional Order of Discipline

provisionally suspending Respondent's license to practice chiropractic in the State of New Jersey

was issued on January 25, 2007, and a copy was forwarded to Respondent on or about March 12,

2007, by means of both regular and certified mail.

The Provisional Order was subject to finalization by the Board at 5:00 p.m. on the 30th

business day following entry unless Respondent requested a modification or dismissal of the stated

Findings of Fact or Conclusions of Law by submitting a written request for modification or dismissal

setting forth in writing any and all reasons why said findings and conclusions should be modified

or dismissed and submitting any and all documents or other written evidence supporting

Respondent's request for consideration and reasons therefor.

On or' about April 3, 2007, a letter was received by the Board from Respondent which

acknowledged receipt of the Provisional Order and explained that Respondent was not in

possession of a current biennial registration certificate, and had lost his original license certificate,

so that he could not return them to the Board. Although Respondent stated in the letter that it was

his intention to seek reinstatement of his license in Pennsylvania in the future, and upon

satisfaction of Pennsylvania, to seek reinstatement in New Jersey; Respondent did not in any way

dispute the Findings of Fact or Conclusions of Law set forth in the Provisional Order.

Accordingly the Board having considered the matter and determined that further

proceedings are not necessary, it has determined that the Provisional Order should be made final.
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THEREFORE, IT IS on this 2 d day of 2007,

ORDERED that:

1. Respondent's license to practice chiropractic in the State of New Jersey be and

hereby is suspended until such time as he has fully satisfied the requirements of his criminal

sentence and until such time as he is reinstated in the State of Pennsylvania without restrictions.

2. Prior to resuming active practice in New Jersey, Respondent shall successfully

complete and unconditionally pass the ProBE (Professional Problem Based Ethics)course offered

by The Ethics Group, 89 Summit Avenue, Suite 185, Summit, New Jersey 07901, or the PRIME

(Professional Renewal in Medicine through Ethics) course offered by the Center for Continuing

Education in the Health Professions at UMDNJ-Robert Wood Johnson Medical School, 97 Paterson

Street, Room 124, New Brunswick, New Jersey 08903. Documentation of the full and successful

completion of the course shall be provided to the Board.

3. Prior to resuming active practice in New Jersey, Respondent shall be required to

appear before the Board (or a committee thereof) to demonstrate fitness to resume practice. Any

practice in this State prior to formal reinstatement of license by the Board shall constitute grounds

for a charge of unlicensed practice. In addition, the Board reserves the right to place restrictions

on Respondent's practice should his license be reinstated.

4. The Directives of the Board applicable to any Chiropractic Board licensee who is

suspended, revoked or whose surrender of licensure has been accepted are incorporated by

reference as though fully set forth herein, whether or not they are attached hereto.

NEW JERSEY STATE BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS

Dated:



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF STATE

BEFORE THE STATE BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
Bureau of Professional and
Occupational Affairs Docket No. 1056-43-2005

V.

• File No. 2004-43-01365
Richard S. Capacio, DC,

Respondent

\ FINAL ORDER

AND NOW, this day of June , 2006, having , duly convened and considered the

entire record of the proceedings , and based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact , Conclusions of

Law and Discussion , the State Board of Chiropractic hereby levies a civil penalty of $3,000.00

and suspends for five years the license to practice chiropractic of Respondent, Richard S.

Capacio, DC, license number DC-002723-L.

The civil penalty shall be paid by cashier's check, certified check, attorney's check or US

Postal Service money order payable to "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania." All licensure

documents, including wall certificate and wallet cards, shall be returned to the State Board of

Chiropractic. The full amount of the civil penalty and the licensure documents shall be delivered

to Board Counsel, Bureau of Professional and Occupational Af fairs, P.O. Box 2649, Harrisbur g,

PA 17105-2649 on or before the ef fective date of this order.

Unless and until the Board has reinstated Respondent's license, Respondent shall cease

and desist from the practice of chiropractic in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

No sooner than one year after the ef fective date of this order, Respondent may request the

Board to reinstate his license to non-suspended probationary status. The Board will

administratively reinstate Respondent's license to non-suspended probationary status if (i)
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Respondent has paid the civil penalty in full, (ii) Respondent has

the federal criminal authorities establishing Provided documentation from

or is g that he has either been discharged from supervision

in full compliance with the terms of the criminal court sentenci ng order and super-wised

release, (iii) there is no other formal disciplinary action pending against Respondent before the

Board, and (iii) Respondent has submitted a verification that

he has not practiced in violation of
this order. A form verification is attached.

Probation will be subject to substantially the following terms

and conditions:
GENERA L

1 • Respondent shall abide by and obey all laws of the

United States, the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania and its political subdivisions and all rules and re la

-.Y ... _gu .bons and laws,p rta Mg to
the practice of the profession in this Commonwealth or any other state

or jur isdiction in which.Respondent holds. a license to practice the profession. Summ ary

traffi ca violation of this order. violations shall not

2. Respondent shall at all times cooperate
with the Bureau of Professional and Occupational

Affairs, and its agents - - ; -
and employees in the monitoring, supervision and investigation

Respondent's compliance with the terms and conditions of this order, including-requests for, and

causing to be submitted, at Respondent's expense, written reports , records and verifications of

actions that may be required by the Bureau of Professional and Occupational Af fairs.

3. Respondent shall not falsify, misrepresent. or make material omission of any information

submitted pursuant to this order.

4. Respondent shall notify the Bureau of Professional

and Occupational Affairs, in writing,
within five (5) days of the filing of any criminal charges against Respond

ent,the initiation of anylegal action pertaining to Respondent's practice of the profession, the initiation, action,

2



restrict*'on or limitation relating to Respondent by a professional licensing authority of any state

or jurisdiction or the Drug Enforcement Agency of the United States Department of justice, or

any other investigation, action, restriction or limitation relating to Respondent's privileges to

practice the profession.

5. Respondent shall notify the Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs by telephone

within 48 hours and in writing within five (5) days of any change of Respondent's home address ,

phone number , employment status, employer and/or change in practice.

VIOLATION OF TATS ORDER

6. Notification of a violation of the terms. or conditions of this order shall result in the

JMMIEDIATE VACATING,of the stay order, TERMINATION of the period of probatio n,

and
ACTIVATION of the „�„A„�;

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as follows:
)n in the

a The prosecuting attorney for the Commonwealth shall present to the Board's

Respondent has violated any terms or conditions of this order.
that

b. Upon a probable cause determination by the Committee that Respondent has

violated any of the terms or conditions of this order, the Committee shall, without

holding a formal hearing, issue a preliminary order vacating the stay of the within

suspension, terminating this probation and activating the suspension of

Respondent's license.

c. Respondent shall be notified of the Committee's preliminary order within three

business days of its issuance by certified mail and first class mail, postage prepaid,

sent to the Respondent's last registered address on file with the Board, or by
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personal service if necessary.

d. Within 20 days of mailing of the preliminary order, Respondent

may submit a
written answer to the Commonwealth's petition and request that a formal hearing

be held concerning Respondent's violation of probation, in which Respondent may

seek relief from the preliminary order activating the suspension.

Respondent shall
mail the original answer and request for hearing to the Bureau of Professional and

Occupational Affairs, prothonotary, 2601 North Third Street, P.O. Box 2649,

Harrisburg, PA 17105-2649, and a copy to the prosecuting attorney y for the

th, as well as all subsequent f ilings in the matter.

='- �e• If Respondent submits a timely answer and request fora formal he

Board or a Wig, the
designated hearing examiner shall conven_e a formal hearing within 45

days- from the date of the Prothonotary's
formal receipt of Respondent's request for a

hearing,

f Respondent's submission of a timel
Y answer and request for a._- hearin

g shall not
stay the suspension of Respondent's license under. the prep , order.

Thesuspension shall remain in ef fect unless the Board or the hearing examiner issues

an order after the formal hearing staying the suspension again and reactivating the

probation.

g. The facts and averments in this order shall be deemed admitted and

uncontested at this hearing.

h. If the Board or hearing examiner after the fo

rural hearing makes a
determination against Respondent, a final order will be issued sus

suspension of Respondent's license and rsustaining the

imposing any additional disciplinary

4



measures deemed appropriate.

i. If Respondent fails to timely file an answer and request for a hearing, the

Board, upon motion of the prosecuting attorney, shall issue a final order affinnf fi g

the suspension of Respondent's license.

). If Respondent does not make a timely answer and request for a formal he aring

and a final order aff irming the suspension is issued, or the Board or the hearin g

examiner makes a determination against Respondent sustaining the suspension of

Respondent's license, after serving the stayed suspension period and

any
additional imposed discipline, Respondent may petition the Board for

reinstatement upon verification -that= Respondent has complied with the Board's

orders abided byand obeyed-all laws of the Unite
fiates, die Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania and its political subdivisions; and all rules and re

gulahons
Perta ining to the practice of the profession in this Commonwealth.

k. Respondent's failure to fully comply withany terms of this order may also

constitute grounds for additional disciplinary action .

7. Nothing in this order shall preclude the prosecuting attorney for the Co

mmonweQth from
filing charges or the Board from imposing disciplinary or corrective me asures for violations or

facts not contained in this order.

This order shall be ef fective July q , 2004, 30 days after the date of mailing indicated

below.
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BUREAU OF PROFESSIONAL &
OCCUPATIONAL AFFAIRS

Basil L . Merenda, Commissioner

Respondent's attorney:

Commonwealth's attorney:

Board counsel:

Date of mailing:

STATE BOARD OF CI IROPPACTIC

!-:' '-- 0 -

Jonathan w. McCulIough, DC, Chairman

Barbara A. Zemlock, Esquire
POST & SCHELL, PC

17 North Second Street, 12 th Floor
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1601

Bridget I. Guilfoyle, Esquire

Thomas A. Blackburn, Esquire

r
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